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Statement of Compliance
Honourable Brendon Grylls
Minister for Regional Development; Lands; Minister Assisting Minister for State Development
In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, we hereby submit for your information
and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the Pilbara Development Commission for the financial
year ended 30th June 2012.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act
(2006).

Mr Andre Bush
Acting Chairman
Date: 6 September 2012

Mr Stephen Webster
Chief Executive Officer
Date: 6 September 2012

Contact Details
Postal
PO Box 294
Karratha WA 6714

Street
5 Sharp Avenue
Karratha WA 6714

Electronic
Internet:
Email:
Telephone:
Facsimile:

www.pdc.wa.gov.au
pdc@pdc.wa.gov.au
61 8 9185 0600
61 8 9185 0189
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Overview
Executive Summary
Managing the development of the Pilbara during this unprecedented time demands flexibility, innovation and
collaboration. To that end, the Pilbara Development Commission has continued to play a key role, working in
partnership with its stakeholders to support robust social and economic outcomes that will underpin the
Pilbara’s progression towards a region having a diverse economic base that can attract and sustain a rapidly
growing residential population.
The Commission has also worked to maximise the benefits to the Pilbara from the State Government’s
Royalties for Regions program. The Agency has proactively administered its regional grants scheme and
contributed to the management of Royalties for Regions funds allocated in the Pilbara including:


Monitored and supported the implementation of projects funded through the Pilbara Regional Grants
Scheme 2010/2012 and worked with previous Royalties for Regions grant recipients to achieve on time
project delivery



Partnered with the Department of Regional Development and Lands to provide critical input into the
initial round of the WA Regional Development Council’s Action Agenda Fund – a $75m state wide funding
scheme



Continued to facilitate the $120m Pilbara Underground Power Program in partnership with the
Department of Regional Development and Lands and key stakeholders

The year has seen the culmination of a number of major infrastructure projects across the region with a series
of new developments underway as a result of the State Governments $1b Pilbara Cities initiative which is
aimed at developing the main Pilbara centres of Karratha and Port Hedland into cities and to grow other
regional towns to support the expected significant growth in the regional population.
This is an exciting time for the Pilbara and the Commission is playing an important role in partnering with the
Pilbara Cities team to identify and support the delivery of substantial infrastructure projects across the region.
The Commission also facilitates the application and recommendation process for community infrastructure
project grants under Pilbara Cities with significant funds directed during the financial year to a number of
transformational projects.
Concurrently, the Commission continues to play a key role in planning the development of the region as well
as facilitating a series of studies that will provide critical information and data to inform the development of
the region into the future including:


Hosted two Pilbara Dialogues bringing together an eminent group of academic and professional speakers
and over 160 Pilbara stakeholders to deliberate on a range of strategic issues for the region



Hosted visits by key Members of Federal and State Parliament, senior Federal and State Government
bureaucrats, overseas dignitaries and international company executives to promote and highlight the
natural advantages of the region



Worked with key stakeholders on the delivery of affordable accommodation in the region including key
service worker accommodation and housing for the not for profit sector



Undertaken a series of studies to add value to the Pilbara Planning and Infrastructure Framework and
inform the delivery of major projects across the region including the Pilbara Education Study, Newman
Small Incubator Feasibility Study and the West Pilbara Supply Chain Map and Gap Analysis
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The Commission’s activities are guided by its 2010-2013 Strategic Plan which underpins the Agency’s aim to
make Australia’s most important economic region a remarkable place to live, work, visit and invest. The Plan is
aligned with the State Government’s vision for the Pilbara and has a strong focus on the Commission’s critical
role in advocating for and working in partnership with all stakeholders to achieve the long term sustainable
future of the region.
The substantial knowledge and diverse experience of the Board members and Commission staff have enabled
this small but progressive Agency to work effectively to facilitate and support positive outcomes for the region
during the 2011/2012 year.

The Pilbara Region
The Pilbara is a vast and unique region situated in the north west of Western Australia covering over 500,000
square kilometres from its islands in the Indian Ocean through to the Northern Territory border. It is an
ancient land renowned for its stunning natural beauty, striking panoramas and rich and diverse cultural
heritage. Home to the fossilised remains of the earliest signs of life on earth, the world’s largest collection of
rock art petroglyphs and a wealth of natural resources, the Pilbara is unique.
Within the region there are four local government authorities, fourteen towns and over 20 Indigenous
communities, many in remote locations. The region is home to an estimated 2% of Western Australia’s
population of which approximately 20% is Indigenous and in the 2011 census, the Pilbara’s population was
estimated to be 59,894.
The vast majority of the population resides in the western third of the region, within proximity to the two
major regional centres of Karratha and Port Hedland. There are a number of smaller inland towns including
Newman, Tom Price, Paraburdoo, Marble Bar and Nullagine servicing the mining and pastoral sectors.
The Pilbara is dynamic and fast growing endowed with significant offshore and onshore natural resources
which are of global importance and in high demand. Acknowledged as the “engine room” of the nation the
region continues to make a significant contribution to the national and State economies as a result of the
strong growth and expansion of the iron ore and petroleum industries. Whilst the economy is dominated by
the extraction, processing and export of minerals and hydrocarbons, other industries such as construction,
manufacturing, livestock and aquaculture complement and broaden the Pilbara’s economic base.
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Chairman’s Report
Western Australia continues to be the nation’s leading mining investment destination attracting 56 per cent of
total capital spending by the sector in 2011 valued at $63.5 billion. This represents a substantial 44 per cent
increase compared to 2010 and highlights the surge in resource construction which continues to be a major
driver of the economy.
The Pilbara, with its abundance of natural resources and continued level of extraordinary growth, attracted the
lion’s share of this investment, retaining its mantle as Australia’s most strategically important economic zone.
Major resource project announcements of particular note during this financial year included:


Chevron’s Wheatstone $29b LNG Project at Ashburton North, west of Onslow



BHP Billiton Iron Ore’s pre-commitment funding of approximately $1b to complete the feasibility for
the proposed $22b outer harbour project in Port Hedland



FMG’s $8.5b expansion program including rail and port upgrades and the development of the inland
Solomon Hub near the town of Tom Price



A $400m rail and power supply project as the final stage of the $1.2b Hope Downs 4 iron ore project a
joint venture between Pilbara Iron and Hancock Prospecting

This phenomenal growth is expected to continue for some time into the future with up to $175b committed to
further expansions and new resource projects in the region over the coming years.
Similarly the State Government’s Royalties for Region’s $1 billion Pilbara Cities initiative has seen substantial
results during this financial year with the completion of a number of key community infrastructure projects
and the announcement of significant new developments across the region’s four local government areas
including:


Shire of Roebourne’s $65m Karratha Leisure Complex and the Mulataga Residential Precinct as major
components of a $1.5b City of the north project



Town of Port Hedland’s $100m South Hedland Town Centre redevelopment and $32m Multi-Purpose
Recreation Centre



Shire of East Pilbara’s $20m Newman Town Centre redevelopment and $5m sporting facilities
upgrade



Shire of Ashburton’s $20m Tom Price Town Centre redevelopment and a $10m boost to the Onslow
Community Fund

The Commission’s activities during this financial year have had a strong focus on informing and adding value to
the Government’s agenda for transformational change in the Pilbara through a number of endeavours. This
includes the agency’s pivotal role in supporting the delivery of the Pilbara Cities vision and important
contribution to the finalisation of the Pilbara Planning and Infrastructure Framework, a vital document that
underpins the future development of the region.
Over the past 12 months, the Commission has also undertaken an active role in facilitating a number of critical
information forums and hosting senior ministers and bureaucrats including international delegations to
advocate and promote the economic opportunities and natural advantages that abound within the region.
Highlights include facilitating two very successful Pilbara Dialogues that examined specific issues challenging
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growth in the region and hosting meetings and workshops for the Head of the Department of Defence’s
Australian Defence Force Posture Review.
The Commission has also worked in partnership with key stakeholders to deliver several major studies to
support critical economic and social outcomes for the region and in particular the Pilbara Education Study
which is the foundation document for the distribution of $50m from the Pilbara Cities program to improve
education delivery in the region. The studies are important strategic tools that enable the Commission to
support opportunities for Pilbara communities and to be involved in all levels of development across the
region.
On a broader note, the finalisation of the State Government’s review into the nine Regional Development
Commissions is generating a new level of recognition of the importance of regional WA to the future
prosperity of the state.
As the Pilbara’s representative on the WA Regional Development Council I am encouraged by the renewed
focus on regional WA and the opportunities for positive change this will bring to the Pilbara. The Commission
was pleased to host a visit by the new independent chair of the WA Regional Development Council, Mr Ian
Fletcher, following his appointment in December 2011 and a regional meeting of the revamped Council in May
2012.
All in all, it has been an extremely busy and fruitful year for the Commission. The Agency’s achievements are
due to the work of a very dedicated team of staff and Board members who share a passion for the Pilbara and
who have worked selflessly over the year to drive and support substantial change in this important and
dynamic region of Australia.
I take this opportunity to thank my fellow Board members for their contribution to the Commission over the
past 12 months. In particular I would like to thank our previous Members, Ms Veronica Rodenburg, Ms Ann
Eyre and Mr Greg Musgrave all of whom made a significant contribution to the Commission during their
tenure.
Thanks also to the dedicated Commission staff who have continued to demonstrate an outstanding
commitment to the Agency and a dogged passion for the sustainable development of the region, under the
guidance of their Chief Executive Officer. I commend Stephen Webster and his commitment to delivering on
the goals set by the Board.
Finally, on behalf of the Board and staff I take this opportunity to pass on our appreciation to the Minister, the
Hon Brendon Grylls MLA and his staff for their support and commitment to regional Western Australia and in
particular to the future of the Pilbara.
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Pilbara Royalties for Regions
Pilbara Regional Grant Scheme
The Pilbara Regional Grants Scheme is established under the Liberal-National Government’s Royalties for
Regions program and is administered by the Commission. The Scheme is especially aimed at projects that will
assist in attracting investment, increase job opportunities and improve the quality of life in the region.
Pilbara Regional Grants Scheme guidelines have been designed to be consistent with the Royalties for Regions
program’s aims and objectives and align with the Commission’s 2010-2013 Strategic Plan.
Applications undergo a rigorous assessment process by the Commission’s Internal Assessment Panel which
comprises three senior staff and two Board members. Projects approved by the Board are submitted to the
Minister for Regional Development for approval and Cabinet endorsement.
The Commission has supported a broad range of projects across the region with some highlights as follows:
IBN Corporation – Planting our Future Indigenous Community Improvements – Total Cost $506,900
IBN Corporation received $149,000 from the RfR Pilbara Regional Grant Scheme to assist with its project to
improve community facilities in Wakathuni, Bellary Springs and Youngalina which are located inland near the
town of Tom Price. New barbeques, shade cloth and community gardens are being installed with additional
funding and in kind support provided by Lotterywest, the Shire of Ashburton, Gumala Aboriginal Corporation
and IBN Corporation The project is expected to be completed in January 2013.
Pilbara Mesquite Management Committee – Strategic Management of Invasive Weeds – Total Cost $480,700
The Committee received $127,800 from the RfR Pilbara Regional Grant Scheme to assist with its project to
build on current mesquite and parkinsonia management programs the aim of reducing the abundance and
density of both weeds in the Pilbara. Mesquite and parkinsonia are identified as Weeds of National
Significance with significant adverse physical, biological and environmental impacts on pastoral leases in the
region.
The project, which is expected to be completed in 2013, is already seeing results with over 20 stakeholders
trained in best practice management techniques and up to 40,000 mesquite plants destroyed. Additional
funding is being provided to the project from the Shire of Roebourne, Citic Pacific, Department of Agriculture
and Food WA, Rangelands NRM and individual pastoral lease holders.
Veterans Retreat WA – Meentheena Veterans Retreat Project – Total Cost $110,000
Veterans Retreat WA received $84,852 from the RfR Pilbara Regional Grant Scheme to assist with its project to
establish a Retreat for war veterans on the Meetheena Pastoral lease in a remote location in the Pilbara. The
Retreat is the first of its kind in Western Australia providing respite to war and paramilitary veterans who
suffer from disabilities, illness, injury or sickness as a result of their involvement in operational duties.
The project was completed in June 2012 and the Retreat was officially opened by the Minister for Regional
Development;Lands in July 2012.
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Youth Involvement Council – Hedland Youth Integration and Education Program – Total Cost $133,500
The Youth Involvement Council received $45,000 from the RfR Pilbara Regional Grant Scheme to assist with
the refurbishment of a space at the Lawson Street Youth Centre to deliver the Hedland Youth Integrated and
Education program. The Program provides specialised education, training, development and support to a core
group of 10-20 youths aged 10-16 years who have disengaged from the formal education system.
The refurbishment project was completed in February 2012 with the new facility opened in March 2012. The
program is being delivered with funding from BHP Billiton and the Youth Involvement Council.

Pilbara Cities Grant Funding
Pilbara Cities’ was established by the Minister for Regional Development, Hon Brendon Grylls MLA in May
2009 as a four year program to support the development of the region with an initial allocation of $300m.
Since that time the fund has grown to $1b to support the future growth and sustainability of the region,
particularly in priority areas which include land availability and affordable housing, community amenity,
Indigenous engagement and essential infrastructure.
The Pilbara Development Commission facilitates the application, assessment and recommendation process for
grant funding under the Program in partnership with the Pilbara Cities Office.
The Strategic Directions Group, which has been established as a sub-committee of the Commission’s Board
and includes the General Manager of Pilbara Cities, identifies and recommends funding for strategic
infrastructure initiatives.
Applications are subjected to a rigorous assessment process by the Strategic Directions Group with
recommended projects submitted to the Royalties for Region’s Director Generals Group for endorsement and
to the Minister for Regional Development for approval and Cabinet endorsement.
Pilbara Cities funding has supported a broad range of projects across the region with some highlights as
follows:

FORM - West End Port Hedland Final Stage – Wedge Street Redevelopment – Total Cost $8m
FORM received $2.645m from the Pilbara Cities Community Infrastructure Project Fund to undertake
the final stage of the Port Hedland West End Revitalisation Scheme. Pilbara Cities funding is being
used to upgrade Wedge Street, the main street of the historic heart of Port Hedland.
The upgrade of Wedge Street is due to be completed at the end of October 2012. The project is
being delivered with additional funding from BHP Billiton Iron Ore, the Town of Port Hedland, the
Port Hedland Port Authority and FORM.
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Shire of East Pilbara - Upgrade of Capricorn and Boomerang Oval Sporting Precincts Newman –
Total Cost $8.517m
The Shire of East Pilbara received $4.855m from the Pilbara Cities Community Infrastructure Project
Fund to undertake upgrades to both the Capricorn and Boomerang Oval Sporting Precincts. The
project included the development of a junior sports hub at Capricorn Oval and new amenities at
Boomerang Oval to replace those that were removed to accommodate a new main road for the
Newman Town Centre Revitalisation.
The Shire of East Pilbara opened the new junior sports hub in February 2012 and work has since
commenced at Boomerang Oval with the construction of new change rooms, a community meeting
space and kitchen, group storage and public toilets. The project is being delivered with additional
funding from BHP Billiton Iron Ore and the Shire of East Pilbara.
Bloodwood Tree Association – Indigenous Employment and Training Centre – Total Cost $3m
Bloodwood Tree Association received $921,404 from the Pilbara Cities Community Infrastructure
Project Fund to construct a new Indigenous Training and Employment Centre. As one of the largest
Indigenous training and employment service provider in the East Pilbara, Bloodwood provides
holistic employability, economic development, education, and training and employment services
through various programs.
Bloodwood Tree Association opened their new Centre in February 2012. The project was delivered
with additional funding from Lotterywest, the Indigenous Land Corporation and Bloodwood Tree
Association.
Yaandina Family Services – Roebourne Youth Centre – Total Cost $3.5m
Yaandina Family Services received $1m from the Pilbara Cities Community Infrastructure Project
Fund to construct a Youth Centre in the town of Roebourne. The Youth Centre provides a range of
social services, education, entertainment and other engagements within the community.
The Roebourne Youth Centre opened its doors in March 2012. The project was delivered with
additional funding from Lotterywest, the Pilbara Development Commission, the Shire of Roebourne
and Yaandina Family Services.
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Enabling Legislation
The Pilbara Development Commission was established under the Regional Development Commissions Act
(1993).

Responsible Minister
Hon Brendon Grylls MLA
Minister for Regional Development; Lands; Minister Assisting the Minister for State Development.

Reporting Structure
PARLIAMENT

Minister for Regional Development; Lands

Pilbara Development Commission Board
Chairman
Ten Board Members

Chief Executive Officer

PDC

Staff

Advisory Committees
(appointed as required)

Consultants as
required with the
Minister’s approval

Assistance of other
Government
Agencies
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Commission Board
The Regional Development Commissions Act (1993) provides Regional Development Commissions with a Board
of Management. Board members are appointed by the Minister of Regional Development and Lands.
The Commission’s Board comprises a Chairman, Deputy Chairman and eight other members. Three members
are chosen from community nominations, three from local government nominations, three nominated by the
Minister for Regional Development and Lands. The Chief Executive Officer is a member of the Board by virtue
of office.
Board Members are appointed for one, two or three year terms at the discretion of the Minister. A Board
Member is eligible to serve on the Board for a maximum of six consecutive years.

Responsibilities
The Board is the governing body of the Pilbara Development Commission and is responsible to the Minister for
Regional Development for the efficient operations of the Commission.
The Pilbara Development Commission Board is responsible for setting the Commission’s strategic direction,
main policies and priorities. As a governing board, it guides and directs the Commission, sets performance
goals, ensures corporate compliance and management accountability, endorses strategic plans and approves
operating budgets.
The Board’s role is to ensure that the Commission has the resources necessary to achieve goals, monitor
progress and report on outcomes.

Code of Conduct
The Commission’s Board abides by a code of conduct that promotes good practice and due diligence for Board
Members in decision making.

Remuneration to Board Members
The following remuneration is currently paid to Board Members:


Chairman - $770 per full day or $500 part day to a maximum of $19,100 in total per annum.



Deputy Chairman - $630 per full day or $410 per part day to a maximum of $14,350 per annum.



Members - $500 per full day or $330 per part day to a maximum of $9,600 per annum

The following remuneration is currently paid to Board Members for working party or Sub Committee Meeting:


Chairman - $370 per full day or $250. per part day.



Members - $250 per full day or $170 per part day.

Motor vehicle allowance as prescribed in Premiers Circular 2006/01 is paid to Board Members on approved
Commission business.
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Advisory Committees
Under the provisions of the Regional Development Commissions Act (1993), the Board may, from time to time,
establish a committee for the purpose of considering a particular matter specified by the Board and prescribe
the membership, constitution and procedures of the committee.
The Strategic Directions Group has been constituted as an Advisory Committee of the Board under these
provisions.
The Audit, Risk and Governance Committee has been constituted as an Audit, Risk and Governance Committee
under these provisions.

Board Members for 2011-2012
Position

Name

Category

Location

Term Expiry

Chairman

Cr Nicole Lockwood

Local Government

Karratha

30/06/2012

Deputy Chairman

Mr Andre Bush

Ministerial

Perth

30/06/2012

Member

Mr Larry Softley

Community

Tom Price

30/06/2012

Member

Cr Kelly Howlett

Ministerial

Port Hedland

30/06/2012

Member

Cr Lynne Craigie

Ministerial

Newman

30/06/2012

Member

Mr Robin Vandenberg

Community

Karratha

30/06/2012

Member

Cr Shane Carter

Local Government

Newman

30/06/2013

Member

Mr Chris Adams

Community

Karratha

30/06/2012

Member

Mr Stephen Webster

Ex-Officio

Karratha

On-going

Cr Nicole Lockwood - Chairman
Cr Nicole Lockwood lives in Karratha and is a former President of the Shire of Roebourne. Nicole is a member
of the Infrastructure Australia Council and the WA Planning Commission. A lawyer and mother-of-two Nicole
has previously worked with the Pilbara Community Legal Service, Office of the Director of Public Prosecutions
and Corrs Chambers Westgarth Lawyers.
As Chairman of the Board, Nicole is committed to overseeing the Commission’s participation in the delivery of
the government’s program to develop world-class cities in Karratha and Port Hedland with a vastly increased
population base, a diversified economy and improved public infrastructure and social amenity.
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Nicole is dedicated to creating communities in the Pilbara that people are proud to call home – from the cradle
to the grave.
Mr Andre Bush - Deputy Chairman
Mr Andre Bush is a civil engineer by profession, working and travelling extensively around the world over the
past 35 years. Andre has developed wide-ranging experience from managing mine developments in South
Africa through to turnkey hotel developments in Swaziland and Mauritius, and crude oil and LNG terminals
worldwide.
As a former CEO of the Port Hedland Port Authority, Andre has a well-developed appreciation of the
opportunities for the Pilbara arising from the current level of growth. Andre is keen to see the region reach its
full potential as an attractive place to live and work.
Mr Larry Softley
Mr Larry Softley is a former long term resident of Tom Price with significant experience in executive roles in
local government and the non-government sectors. As a former CEO of an Indigenous Corporation, Larry has
acquired significant experience in projects to progress economic and social outcomes for Indigenous people
including the development of the Karijini Eco Retreat in the Karijini National Park.
Larry recently moved to Perth where he has established himself as a freelance consultant. Larry has served on
a number of committees in the Pilbara and has been the Chair of the Tom Price Youth Support Association
since 2004. Larry is committed to long term sustainability in the region to support future generations.
Cr Kelly Howlett
Cr Kelly Howlett has lived in Port Hedland for over ten years and is the current Mayor of the Town of Port
Hedland, a role which she undertakes on a full time basis.
With a Degree in Environmental Science and as the founding member and Chair of the Care for Hedland
Environmental Association, Kelly works proactively to raise the profile of the Pilbara’s natural and social
environment.
Kelly’s other interests include tourism and building sustainable and resilient communities and she is
committed to a balanced approach to the development of the region.
Cr Shane Carter
Cr Shane Carter has lived and worked in Newman for the past 34 years and was elected to the Shire of East
Pilbara Council in 2006 where he represents the South West Ward.
Shane is active in the community as a committee member for the Newman Visitors Centre, the Newman YMCA
and the East Pilbara BHP Sustainability Partnership Committee.
Shane is committed to using his extensive experience and local knowledge, particularly of the inland Pilbara, to
benefit the long term future of the region.
Cr Lynne Craigie
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Lynne is a long term resident of Newman and was elected to the Shire of East Pilbara Council in May 2003.
Lynne has held the position of Shire President since October 2009.
Lynne is involved in several small businesses in the town in partnership with her husband Peter. Lynne is also
involved in many community organisations and is the President of the Pilbara Regional Council in addition to
being on the State Council for the West Australian Local Government Association.
Mr Robin Vandenberg
Robin has been a resident of the Pilbara for over 40 years and in this time has married and raised two children
whilst working for a number of corporations as well as having the opportunity to manage and own a number
of small businesses.
Robin moved with his young family from Newman to Karratha in 1978 and is an active member of the
community. He is currently President of the Karratha & Districts Chamber of Commerce & Industry.
Robin is a passionate member of the Pilbara community and is a strong believer in the State Government’s
Pilbara Cities and Royalties for Regions Projects which is ushering in the transformation of Pilbara towns.
Robin has been a member of the Pilbara Development Commission Board since October 2011.

Mr Chris Adams
Chris Adams is the General Manager of the Pilbara Cities Office, a division of the Western Australian
Department of Regional Development and Lands.
Born and raised in the Pilbara region of WA, Chris has a diverse background gained from a wide range of
professional roles plus tertiary studies in a variety of disciplines including management and leadership training
at Stanford University, USA. Chris has filled senior executive and CEO roles within local government in
Melbourne Victoria and the Kimberley region of WA. He returned to the Pilbara in 2005 as the CEO of the
Town of Port Hedland
Chris has management responsibility for the $1billion Pilbara Cities project and is integrally involved with all
Pilbara related planning and development issues.
Having spent more than half his life in the Pilbara and now with a young family of his own, Chris is highly
motivated to work in partnership with all stakeholders, to ensure that Pilbara communities grow, diversify and
benefit from the exponential resource and industrial growth currently taking place.

Mr Stephen Webster
Mr Stephen Webster lives in Karratha and has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Commission since 2007.
Stephen has extensive experience in regional Western Australia, particularly in the areas of tertiary education
and training including involvement in the delivery of Indigenous traineeship programs for the mining industry.
As Chief Executive Officer, Stephen is committed to his role of leading the Commission in coordinating,
promoting and advocating for the sustainable economic and social development of the Pilbara.
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Members who retired during 2011-12:
Ms Veronica Rodenburg
Ms Anne Eyre
Mr Gregory Musgrave

Administered and Other Key Legislation Impacting on the Commissions
Activities
In the performance of its functions, the Commission complies with the following relevant written laws:














Regional Development Commissions Act 1993.
Auditor General Act 2006.
Disabilities Services Act 1993.
Equal Opportunities Act 1984.
Financial Management Act 2006.
Freedom of Information Act 1992.
Industrial Relations Act 1979.
Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993.
Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984.
Public Sector Management Act 1994.
Salaries and Allowances Act 1975.
State Records Act 2000.
State Supply Commission Act 1991.
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Organisational Structure
Organisational Chart
The Commission’s structure is based on three areas of operation.
1.
2.
3.

Executive Services – Managerial arm of the Commission
Corporate Services – Administrative arm of the Commission.
Regional Development – Service delivery arm of the Commission:

Pilbara Development Commission Objectives
VISION
The Pilbara is the place to live, work, visit and invest

MISSION STATEMENT
Empower the Pilbara Communities to direct their own future as diversified and sustainable centres that are
attractive to live, work and invest in.
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VALUES
The Pilbara Development Commission strives for excellence in delivering services to the Pilbara.


We work professionally and with integrity.



We are passionate and committed about our work and region.



We value and include everyone across our region.



We plan for the future with vision and innovation.

Performance Management Framework
As a Statutory Authority, the Commission has legal responsibilities in accordance with the Regional
Development Commissions Act 1993.
Further, the Commission has to comply with State Government Policies, hold regular Board meetings and
ensure fair and transparent decision making.
The Commission is responsible for delivering a high level of governance informed by the Public Sector
Management Act 1994, the Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and the Public Sector
Commission’s Good Governance for Western Australian Public Sector Boards and Committees.
The Commission is responsible for developing a code of conduct which is updated regularly.

Outcome Based Management Framework
The Commission’s services are aligned to the agency level government desired outcome of “Enhancement of
the Pilbara region’s economic and social development”, and involve three areas: Business and Industry
Development; Infrastructure and Service Identification and Coordination; and Regional Promotion and
Information Services.
Through these services, the government’s high level goal of ensuring that regional Western Australia is strong
and vibrant can be achieved. In performing these services, the Commission works with Pilbara stakeholders to
identify areas where services and infrastructure are deficient or non-existent and to assist with the
development and implementation of mechanisms to bring about changes that foster improvement.
The Commission works to liaise and maintain communication between these groups and the State (and on
occasion Commonwealth) agencies responsible for providing key government services. It is also the key
organisational responsible for the distribution of grant monies to provide direct financial assistance designed
to stimulate economic and social development in the region.
The three services provided by the Commission are:
1.

Business and Industry Development - The Commission seeks to ensure that across the region, business
and industry operate in an economic environment which maximises opportunities for growth and creates
a climate to attract investment.
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2.

Infrastructure and Service Identification and Coordination - The Commission works with stakeholders to
identify infrastructure and service requirements and to advocate for the development of infrastructure
and equity of access to services.

3.

Regional Promotion and Information Services - The Commission promotes regional opportunities with
the objective of attracting new residents, investors and tourists by supporting regional activities and
through the provision of accurate and accessible information.

Strategic Approach
The Commission’s operations are primarily aligned to support the Western Australian Government’s Strategic
Priorities.
The Pilbara Development Commission places a strong emphasis on developing a strategic and planned
approach to the region’s development and has undertaken its duties as set out in its Strategic Plan 2010-2013.

Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework
The Commission’s Outcome Based Management Framework did not change during 2011-2012.

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies
The Commission did not share any responsibilities with other agencies in 2011-12.

Agency Performance
Report on Operations
Actual Results versus Budgeted Targets
Financial Targets
Target (1)
$000

Actual
$000

Variation (2)
$000

Total cost of services (expense limit)

4,821

6,153

(1,332)

Net cost of services

4,391

5,113

(722)

Total Equity

2,313

2,607

(294)

Surplus/(deficiency) for the period

488

1,602

(1,114)

Approved full time equivalent (FTE) staff level

12

14

2

(1) As specified in the budget statements for the 2011-12 financial year.
(2) Budget overspends were experienced in the following areas:
 Grant payments $748,791 resulting from grants budgeted for payment in the previous year
rolled and paid in the current financial year.
 Services increased by $108,000 mainly resulting from the change of office in Karratha.
 The overlap of the Karratha’s old and new offices resulted in a $74,000 overspend.
 Unbudgeted focus change in more aggressive marketing of the Pilbara caused a $79,000
overspend.
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Key Performance Indicators – Actual Performance versus Budgeted Targets
Target (1)

Actual

Variation (2)

80%

96%

16%

Key Efficiency Indicators
Business and Industry Development relevant and effective in
supporting regional development

80%

94%

14%

Key Efficiency Indicators
Pilbara Development Commission staff provide both professional
and helpful service

80%

99%

19%

Key Effectiveness Indicator
Customers satisfied that the Commission is effective in meeting
its service obligations of Enhancement of the Pilbara Region's
economic and social development.

(1) As specified in the budget statements for the 2011-12 financial year.
(2) The Commission believes that the outstanding results reflected in the variations in the key performance
indicators have been achieved through a dedicated effort by the Agency to work in partnership with its
stakeholders over the year and ensure that they have a full understanding of the Commission’s important
role in the sustainable development of the Pilbara.

Significant Issues and Trends
Current and emerging issues and trends
The Pilbara’s rapid economic growth is predicted to continue over an extended period as major new resource
sector projects and expansions are commissioned. In particular the iron ore and oil and gas industries will
continue to develop and expand to meet the increasing demand from China and the rest of Asia. As a result,
the Pilbara is expected to retain its mantle as an area of strategic significance to both the State and National
economies for some time into the future.
Affordable housing and land availability remain critical factors for a sustainable Pilbara. The exceptional
growth of the region has resulted in significant increases in the residential population as well as a substantial
FIFO workforce, mainly in construction. This has led to a severe shortage of affordable accommodation and
land with substantial increases in the cost of housing and rental properties way beyond the national average.
The State Government has introduced a range of initiatives and committed significant funding to generate
more affordable accommodation and land under the Royalties for Regions program. This includes reasonably
priced housing and land for key and essential workers not directly employed in the resources sector. Given the
severity and longevity of the deficit, it is likely to take some time before the availability and cost of housing and
rental accommodation in the region is “normalised”, particularly in the larger regional towns.
Hard and soft infrastructure to support economic and community sustainability and the diversification of the
economic base are also regarded as crucial to enhancing the Pilbara lifestyle and attracting people to the
region. This includes enhanced service delivery and improvements to areas such as health, education and
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childcare which are fundamental to the sustainable development of the region and broadening the regional
economy through the attraction and development of new business in the region.
Under the Royalties for Regions “Pilbara Cities” blueprint, the State government has committed significant
funding and resources, particularly to the main regional towns of Port Hedland and Karratha, to stimulate the
development of new facilities and upgrades of existing infrastructure. New hospitals, education institutes,
sporting and recreation facilities and culture and the arts are some of the major social infrastructure projects
in progress or planned. Funding has also been committed to investigating and supporting new business
development and growth in the small business sector.
Another key factor for sustainable growth in the Pilbara is the attraction and retention of skilled workers
across all sectors including the government, non-government, small business and industry sectors. The nongovernment or not for profit sector and small business are particularly impacted which has the potential to
negatively impact on the delivery of a number of essential and other services that would be expected to
support a sustainable community. Given the national shortage of skilled workers, attraction and retention will
continue to be a significant issue for the resources sector as new projects and expansions come on stream.
There are considerable opportunities for the Pilbara’s Indigenous population to gain long term economic and
social benefits from the expansion in the resources sector and growth in the region. Government, the
resource sector and non-government agencies already work closely with Indigenous people to support
business development, training and skills development, employment and social improvements for Indigenous
communities. Whilst there has been progress in this area, stakeholders will need to continue to work in a
strategic, collaborative and inclusive manner to maintain improved outcomes in the socio-economic status of
the Pilbara’s Indigenous population.
The ongoing expansion of the resource sector together with the government’s strong commitment to the
sustainable development of the region promises a bright future for the Pilbara. To achieve this, all
stakeholders will need to continue to work together to ensure that the Pilbara gains long term sustainable
economic and social benefits during this unprecedented period.
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Financial Statements
Certification of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Pilbara Development Commission have been prepared in
compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act (2006) from proper accounts and records to
present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ending 30 June 2012 and the financial position as
at 30 June 2012.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in
the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

Mr Andre Bush
Acting Chairman

Mr Stephen Webster
Chief Executive Officer

Mr Kevin Walsh
Assistant Director Corporate

DATE: 6 September 2012

DATE:

DATE:

6 September 2012

6 September 2012
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2012
2012
$000

2011
$000

6
7
8
9
10
11

2,526
1,019
11
261
2,273
63
6,153

2,262
955
19
194
4,447
90
7,967

12

1,040
1,040

403
403

Total Income Other than Income from State Government

1,040

403

NET COST OF SERVICES

5,113

7,564

3,329
148
5
3,233
6,715

3,046
145
13
1,750
4,954

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

1,602

(2,610)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

1,602

(2,610)

Cost of services
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Total Cost of Services
Income
Revenue:
Other revenue
Total Revenue

Income from State Government
Service appropriation
Other state grants
Resources received free of charge
Royalties for Region Fund
Total Income from State Government

Note

13

See note 31 ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service’
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2012
2012
$000

2011
$000

1,465
2,040
73
3,578

798
1,742
213
2,753

48
55
103

48
27
75

3,681

2,828

20
21
22

545
519
1,064

593
348
905
1,846

21

10
10

7
7

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,074

1,853

NET ASSETS

2,607

975

323
2,284

293
682

2,607

975

Note
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalent
Restricted cash and cash equivalent
Receivables
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Amounts receivable for services
Plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets

24
14;24
15

16
17

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Accumulated surplus (deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

23

The statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of Change in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Contributed
Equity
$000

Accumulated
Surplus (Deficit)
$000

263

3,292

-

(2,610)

(2,610)

30

-

30

Balance at 30 June 2011

293

682

975

Balance at 1 July 2011

293

682

975

-

1,602

1,602

30

-

30

323

2,284

2,607

Note
Balance at 1 July 2010
Total comprehensive income for the period
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Capital contribution

Total comprehensive income for the period
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Capital contribution
Balance at 30 June 2012

The statement of Change in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Total
Equity
$000
3,555
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Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 30 June 2012
2012
$000

2011
$000

3,329
30
148
3,233
6,740

3,046
30
145
1,750
4,971

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchasing
Other expenses

(2,344)
(1,071)
(261)
(3,178)
(428)
(63)

(2,221)
(976)
(194)
(6,056)
(686)
(90)

Receipts
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net Cash Provided by (used in) Operating Activities

88
382
1,139
(5,736)

66
629
742
(8,786)

(39)
(39)

-

965
2,540

(3,815)
6,355

3,505

2,540

Note
CASH FLOW FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Capital appropriation
Holding account drawdowns
State grants
Royalties for Region Fund
Net Cash Provided by the State Government
Utilised as follows

25

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Net Cash Provided by (used in) Investing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

25

The Statement of Cash Flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Pilbara Development Commission
Annual report 2011-2012
Page 31 of 68

Index of Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1 Australian Accounting Standards
Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
Note 3 Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
Note 4 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Note 5 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Note 6 Employee benefits expenses
Note 7 Supplies and services
Note 8 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Note 9 Accommodation expenses
Note 10 Grants and subsidies
Note 11 Other expenses
Note 12 Other revenue
Note 13 Income from State Government
Note 14 Restricted cash & cash equivalents
Note 15 Receivables
Note 16 Amounts receivable for services (holding account)
Note 17 Plant and equipment
Note 18 Intangible assets
Note 19 Impairment of assets
Note 20 Payables
Note 21 Provisions
Note 22 Other liabilities
Note 23 Equity
Note 24 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Note 25 Commitments
Note 27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Note 27 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
Note 28 Explanatory statement
Note 29 Financial instruments
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Note 31 Remuneration of auditor
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards
General
The Commission’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012 have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
The Commission has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their
operative dates.
Early adoption of standards
The Commission cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101
Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption
of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Commission
for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2012.
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a)

General statement
The Commission is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts
and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s instructions. Several
of these are modified by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s instructions impose legislative provisions that govern
the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported
results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost
convention.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently
applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars ($’000).
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Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that
have been made in the process of applying the Commission’s accounting policies resulting in the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
(c)

Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises the Pilbara Development Commission (Commission).

(d) Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities
requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of
administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by
owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity
contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955
Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to
Contributed equity.
The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and
non-reciprocal.
(e)

Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised for the major
business activities as follows:
Service appropriations
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Commission
gains control of the appropriated funds. The Commission gains control of appropriated funds at the time
those funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to the ‘Amounts receivable for services’
(holding account) held at Treasury.
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Commission obtains control over the assets comprising the
contributions, usually when cash is received.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair
value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the
services would be purchased if not donated.
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Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the Commission
obtains control over the funds. The Commission obtains control of the funds at the time the funds are
deposited into the Commission's bank account.
(f)

Plant and equipment
Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Items of plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising
assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of plant and equipment costing less than
$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where
they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).
Initial recognition and measurement
Plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.
For items of plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the
date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, historical cost model is used by the Commission for all plant
and equipment. All items of plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated
useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually.
Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:
•

Plant and equipment

10 to 15 years

•

Office equipment

5 years

•

Software (a)

3 to 5 years

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware

(g)

Intangible assets
Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing
$50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful
life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the
cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected
benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets
controlled by the Commission have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset is:
•

Software (a)

3 to 5 years

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware

Computer software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as plant and equipment. Software
that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset. Software costing
less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.
(h) Impairment of assets
Plant and equipment is tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. As the Commission is a not-forprofit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially
understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life.
Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic
benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of
impairment.
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried
at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to marketbased evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus
assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are
tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
(i)

Leases
The Commission holds operating leases for three office buildings and its vehicle fleet.
Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of
benefits derived from the leased properties.

(j)

Financial instruments
In addition to cash, the Commission has two categories of financial instrument:
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• Receivables; and
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:
• Financial Assets
o
Cash and cash equivalents
o
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
o
Receivables
o
Amounts receivable for services.
• Financial Liabilities
o

Payables

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to
the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because
there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of
discounting is not material.
(k)

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash
equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(l)

Accrued salaries
Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued
salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The Commission considers the carrying
amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value.

(m)

Amounts receivable for services (holding account)

The Commission receives income from State Government partly in cash and partly as an asset (holding
account receivable). The accrued amount appropriated is accessible on the emergence of the cash
funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset replacement.
(n) Receivables
Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts
(i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables
identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible
amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Commission will not be able
to collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30
days.
(o) Payables
Payables are recognised when the Commission becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a
purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally
within 30 days.
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(p) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Provisions – employee benefits
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employee’s services up to the end of
the reporting period.
Annual leave
The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the
liability is settled.
Annual leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is
recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the
experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted
using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to
maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Commission does not have an
unconditional right to the defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
Long service leave
The liability for long service leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the
liability is settled.
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Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the
experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted
using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to
maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Commission does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as noncurrent liabilities because the Commission has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) administers public sector superannuation
arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements.
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new
members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum
scheme closed to new members since 1995.
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purpose of employees and whole-of-government reporting.
However, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions
(defined contributions) made by the Commission to GESB extinguishes the agency’s obligations to the
related superannuation liability.
The Commission has no liabilities under the Pension Schemes or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded
Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from
the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent
contributions made by the Commission to the GESB.
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension
or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).
Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super
Scheme (GESBS). Both of these schemes are accumulation schemes. The Commission makes concurrent
contributions to GESB on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. These contributions extinguish the liability for
superannuation charges in respect of the WSS and GESBS.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from
the Treasurer for the employer’s share.
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Provisions – other
Employment on-costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has
occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of
the Commission’s ‘Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs
provision’.
(q) Superannuation expense
The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises employer
contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), WSS, and GESBS.
(r)

Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost
Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as
income at fair value. Where resources received represents a service that the Commission would
otherwise pay for, a corresponding expense is recognised. Receipts of assets are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position.
Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income
from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(s)

Comparative figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in
the current financial year.

Note 3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The judgements that have been used in the process of applying accounting policies have had no material effect
on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Operating lease commitments
The Commission has entered into leases for buildings used for office accommodation. It has been determined
that the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly, the leases
have been classified as operating leases.
Note 4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
There were no estimates or assumptions made concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that is likely to have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Commission has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 that impacted on the Commission.
AASB 1054

Australian Additional Disclosures
This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project, removes disclosure
requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to
achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards.
There is no financial impact.

AASB 2009-12

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 5, 8, 108, 110, 112, 119, 133,
137, 139, 1023 & 1031 and Int 2, 4, 16, 1039 & 1052]
This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010-4

Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual
Improvements Project [AASB 1, 7, 101 & 134 and Int 13]
The amendments to AASB 7 clarify financial instrument disclosures in relation to credit
risk. The carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or
impaired whose terms have been renegotiated is no longer required to be disclosed.
There is no financial impact
The amendments to AASB 101 clarify the presentation of the statement of changes in
equity. The disaggregation of other comprehensive income reconciling the carrying
amount at the beginning and the end of the period for each component of equity is no
longer required. There is no financial impact

AASB 2010-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 101, 107, 112, 118,
119, 121, 132, 133, 134, 137, 139, 140, 1023 & 1038 and Int 112, 115, 127, 132 & 1042]
This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman
Convergence Project [AASB 1, 5, 101, 107, 108, 121, 128, 132 & 134 and Int 2, 112 &
113]
This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 1054, removes disclosure requirements from
other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to achieve convergence
between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards. There is no financial
impact.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
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The Commission cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101
Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Commission
has not applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may
impact the Commission. Where applicable, the Commission plans to apply these Australian Accounting
Standards from their application date.

AASB 9

Financial Instruments

Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
1 Jan 2013

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of
changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was reissued in December 2010.
The
Commission has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard
AASB 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Jan 2011

This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and Int 112
Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number
of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Commission has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard
AASB 11

Joint Arrangements

1 Jan 2013

This Standard supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures,
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Commission has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

1 Jul 2013

This Standard supersedes disclosure requirements under AASB
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and AASB
131 Interests in Joint Ventures.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Commission has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 13

Fair Value Measurement

1 Jan 2013

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for
measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. There is no financial impact.
AASB 119

Employee Benefits

1 Jan 2013
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This Standard supersedes AASB 119 Employee Benefits,
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in September 2011. The Commission
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard.
AASB 127

Separate Financial Statements

1 Jan 2013

This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, introducing a
number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Commission has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 128

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

1 Jan 2013

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates,
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Commission has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 1053

Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards

1 Jul 2013

This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting
framework consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements
for preparing general purpose financial statements. There is
no financial impact.
AASB 2009-11

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127,
128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12]

1 Jul 2013

[Modified by AASB 2010-7]
AASB 2010-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 101,
102, 107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124,
127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052
and Int 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052]

1 Jul 2013

This Standard makes amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations to introduce reduced disclosure
requirements for certain types of entities. There is no financial
impact.
AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108,
112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 &
1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a

1 Jan 2013
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result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The Commission
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard.
AASB 2011-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project – Reduced Disclosure
Requirements [AASB 101 & 1054]

1 Jul 2013

This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other
Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to
achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand
Accounting Standards for reduced disclosure reporting. There
is no financial impact.
AASB 2011-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending
Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method and
Proportionate
Consolidation
–
Reduced
Disclosure
Requirements [AASB 127, 128 & 131]

1 Jul 2013

This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity
method and proportionate consolidation by removing the
requirement for the consolidated financial statements
prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate parent entity to
be IFRS compliant, provided that the parent entity, investor or
venturer and the ultimate or intermediate parent entity
comply with Australian Accounting Standards or Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements.
There is no financial impact.
AASB 2011-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1,
2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133,
136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

1 Jan 2013

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising
from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate
Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures. The Commission has not yet determined
the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2011-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102,
108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133,
134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4,
12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

1 Jan 2013

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value
guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September
2011. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2011-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income [AASB
1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049]
This Standard requires to group items presented in other
comprehensive income on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently

1 Jul 2012
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(reclassification adjustments). The Commission has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the
Standard.
AASB 2011-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 &
2011-8 and Int 14]

1 Jan 2013

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing
AASB 119 Employee Benefits in September 2011. The
Commission has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2011-11

Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from
Reduced Disclosure Requirements

1 Jul 2013

This Standard gives effect to Australian Accounting Standards –
Reduced Disclosure Requirements for AASB 119 (September
2011). There is no financial impact.
AASB 2012-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value
Measurement – Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 3,
7,13,140 &141]
This Standard establishes and amends reduced disclosure
requirements for additional and amended disclosures arising
from AASB 13 and the consequential amendments
implemented through AASB 2011-8. There is no financial
impact.

1 Jul 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 6. Employee benefits expenses
(a)

Wages and salaries
(b)
Superannuation – defined contribution plans
Other related expenses

2012
$000
2,199
146
181
2,526

2011
$000
1,985
102
175
2,262

(a)

Includes the value of fringe benefits to the employees plus the fringe benefit tax component as well as leave
entitlements, including the superannuation contribution component.
(b)

Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme (contributions paid).

Employment on-cost expenses, such as workers compensation insurance, are included at Note 11, ‘Other
Expenses’.
Employment on-cost liability is included in Note 21 ‘Provisions’.
Note 7. Supplies and Services

Communications
Consultants and contractors
Consumables
Repairs and maintenance
Lease rent and hire costs
Travel
Other

2012
$000
89
357
111
74
81
152
155
1,019

2011
$000
85
445
80
61
64
96
124
955

2012
$000

2011
$000

9
2
11

8
8
16

-

3
3

11

19

2012
$000
261
261

2011
$000
194
194

Note 8. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation
Plant and equipment
Computer Equipment
Total Depreciation
Amortisation
Intangible assets
Total Amortisation
Total Depreciation and Amortisation

Note 9. Accommodation Expenses

Lease Rentals
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 10. Grants and Subsidies

Recurrent
Royalties for Region – Regional Infrastructure and Headworks Accounts
Royalties for Region – Regional Community Services Account
Other grants

2012
$000

2011
$000

295
1,134
844

4,428
119
(100)

2,273

4,447

2012
$000
29
34
63

2011
$000
56
34
90

2012
$000
1,040
1,040

2011
$000
403
403

2012
$000

2011
$000

3,329
3,329

3,046
3,046

148
148

145
145

5
5

13
13

300
2,733
200
3,233
6,715

1,750
1,750
4,954

Note 11.Other Expenses

Audit fees
Other expenses
Note 12.Other Revenue

Miscellaneous including Commonwealth recoups and grant refunds

Note 13.Income from State Government

Appropriations received during the year
(a)
Service appropriations

Other State grants
(b)

Resources received free of charge
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies:
DTF Building Management Works

Royalties for Region Fund:
(c)
- Regional Infrastructure and Headworks Account
(c)
- Regional Community Services Account
(c)
- Country Local Government Fund
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 13.Income from State Government (continued)
(a)

Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation revenue comprises a cash
component and a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the depreciation expense for
the year and any agreed increase in the leave liability during the year.
(b)

Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as revenue at fair value of the
asset and/or the services that can be readily measured and which would have been purchased if they were not
donated. Contribution of assets or services that are in the nature of contributions by owners are recognised
directly to equity.
(c)

This is a sub-fund within the overarching Royalties for Region Fund. The recurrent funds are committed to
projects and programs in the WA regional area.

Note 14.Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalent

Current
Royalties for Region Fund
Other
Total Current

2012
$000

2011
$000

1,390
650
2,040

270
1,472
1,742

2012
$000

2011
$000

5
68
73

104
109
213

Note 15.Receivables

Current
Receivables
GST Receivables
Total Current

The office does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables.

Note 16.Amounts Receivable for Services (holding account)

Non-current
Total Non-Current

2012
$000
48
48

2011
$000
48
48

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it can only be used for
asset replacement or payment of leave liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 17. Plant and Equipment

Plant
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Asset Reconciliation
2012
Carrying amount at the start of the year
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Plant & Furniture
$000
27
28
(9)
46

2011
Carrying amount at the start of the year
Depreciation
Carrying amount at the end of the year

35
(8)
27

2012
$000

2011
$000

70
(24)
46

66
(39)
27

60
(51)
9

111
(111)
-

55

27

Equipment
$000
11
(2)
9

Total
$000
27
39
(11)
55

8
(8)
-

43
(16)
27

2012
$000

2011
$000

9
(9)
-

30
(30)
-

-

3
(3)
-

Note 18.Intangible Assets

Computer software
At cost
Accumulated amortisation

Reconciliation:
Computer software
Carrying amount at the start of the year
Amortisation expense
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Note 19.Impairment of Assets
There were no indications of impairment to plant and equipment as at 30 June 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 20.Payables

Current
Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Accrued superannuation
Accrued salaries
Total Current

2012
$000

2011
$000

66
439
40
545

207
354
1
31
593

2012
$000

2011
$000

196
323
519

136
212
348

10
10

7
7

Note 21.Provisions

Current
Employee benefits provision
(a)
Annual leave
(b)
Long service leave

Non-current
Employee benefits provision
(b)
Long service leave

(a)

Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities
will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the reporting period

2012
$000
140
56
196

2011
$000
107
29
136

(b)

Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of
the liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the reporting period

2012
$000
116
217
333

2011
$000
82
137
219
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Note 22.Other Liabilities

Current
Tourism
BHP
Wickham
Department of Regional Development and Lands

2012
$000

2011
$000

-

60
50
3
792
905

Note 23.Equity

The government holds the equity interest in the Commission on behalf of the community. Equity represents
the residual interest in the net assets of the Commission.

Contributed Equity

2012
$000
293

2011
$000
263

30
30

30
30

323

293

Balance at the start of the year
Result for the period

682
1,602

3,292
(2,610)

Balance at the end of the year

2,284

682

Balance at the start of the period
Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation
Total contributions by owners
Balance at the end of the period
Accumulated surplus (deficit)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 24.Notes to the Statement of Cash Flow

Reconciliation of Cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items
in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2012
$000
1,465
2,040

2011
$000
798
1,742

3,505

2,540

2012
$000

2011
$000

(5,113)

(7,564)

Non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Resources received free of charge

11
5

19
13

Increase (decrease) in assets
(a)
Current receivables
Other current assets

99
-

231
108

(48)
171
3
(905)

(2,549)
139
(97)
905

41
(5,736)

9
(8,786)

Cash and cash equivalent
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 14 ‘Restricted Cash
and Cash Equivalents’)

Reconciliation of the net cash flows provided by (used in) operational activities:

Net cost of services

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
(a)
Current payables
Current provisions
Non-current provisions
Other liabilities
(b

Net GST receipts (payments)
(c)
Change in GST in receivables/payables
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

(a)

(b)
(c)

Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the
receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items
as they do not form part of the reconciling items.
This is the net GST paid/received ie cash transactions.
This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 25.Commitments
The commitments below are inclusive of GST when relevant.
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

2012
$000

2011
$000

185
388
38
611

214
470
43
727

The commission has entered into property leases and leases on its motor vehicles.
Note 26. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period.
There were no events occurring after the reporting date that impact on the financial statements.
Note 27. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets.
There were no contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at the end of June 2012

Note 28. Explanatory Statements
This statement provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2012 and
between the actual result for 2011 and 2012. Significant variations are considered to be those greater than
10% or $100,000
Significant variances between estimates and actuals for 2012

Employee benefit expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Employee expense benefits.
The Commission operated with one FTE less than the
budgeted number of FTE’s.
Supplies and services.
1. Professional services labour hire for temporary
staff during the financial year $70,000
2. Provision of a number of Pilbara Dialogue Forums
to formulate Pilbara priority discussion and
actions $57,000
3. Excess unfunded costs relating to the new Karratha
Commission
and
Agency
shared
office
accommodation $90,000

2012
Estimate
$000
2,659
588
1,000

2012
Actual
$000
2,526
1,019
2,273

Variance
$000
(133)
431
1,273
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 28. Explanatory Statements – (continued)
Grants and Subsidies
1. An additional drawdown of $1m was made during
the financial year.
2. The increase in District Allowance for staff of
$278,000 was funded by Royalties for Regions.
Significant variances between actual results for 2011 and 2012
2012
Actual
$000

2011
Actual
$000

Variance
$000

Income
Service appropriation
Royalties for Region

3,329
3,233

3,046
1,750

283
1,483

Expenses
Employee benefit expenses
Grants and subsidies

2,526
2,273

2,262
4,447

264
(2,174)

Service appropriation
Funding for the 100% increase in District Allowance paid $278,000
Royalties for Region
1. Funds to refurbish the new Karratha office $300,000.
2. Funding for Country Local Governments $200,000.
3. Additional drawdown of Grant funding $1m
Employee benefit expenses
Costs relating to the increase in District Allowances paid $278,000
Grants and subsidies
The 2010-11 financial year had a $4.44m carry-over of
grants that related to the first grant round and this
was largely paid to the grant recipients in the 2011-12
year. The grant round for the current year was $1m
Note 29. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies.
Financial Instruments held by the Commission are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables. The Commission has limited exposure to financial risks. The Commission's overall risk
management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Commission's receivables defaulting on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Commission.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 29. Financial Instruments – (continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in
the table at Note 29(c) 'Financial instrument disclosures' and Note 14 'Receivables'.
Credit risk associated with the Commission's financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amounts
receivable for services (holding account). For receivables other than government, the Commission trades only with
recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Commission has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and
services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the result that the Commission's exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting
period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Commission is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Commission is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.
The Commission has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Commission's income or value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Commission does not trade in foreign
currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks.
(b) Categories of Financial Risk
In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are:

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalent
(a)
Receivables
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
(a)

2012
$000

2011
$000

1,465
2,040
53

798
1,742
152

545

1,498

The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivables)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
c) Financial instrument disclosures.
Credit risk
The following table discloses the Commission’s maximum exposure to credit risk, interest rate exposures and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Commission’s
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the financial asset as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial
assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Commission.
The commission does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.
Aged Analysis of Financial Assets
Past Due but not Impaired

2012
Cash and cash equivalent
Restricted cash and cash equivalent
(a)
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
2011
Cash and cash equivalent
Restricted cash and cash equivalent
(a)
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
(a)

Carrying
Amount

Not Passed
due and not
Impaired

Up to
1 Month

1-3
Months

3 Months to
1 Year

1-5
Years

Mare than
5 Years

Impaired
Financial
Assets

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

1,465
2,040
5
48
3,558

1,465
2,040
5
48
3,558

-

-

-

-

-

-

798
1,742
104
48
2,692

798
1,742
104
48
2,692

30
30

-

-

-

-

-

The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivables)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
Liquidity and Interest Rate Exposure
The following table details the Commission’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis
section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only carrying amounts of each item
Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

(a)

Interest Rate Exposure

Weighted Average
Effective Interest
Rate
%

Maturity Date

Carrying
amount

Fixed
Interest
Rate

Variable
Interest
Rate

Non Interest
Bearing

Nominal
Amount

Up to
1 Month

1-3
Months

1-2
Years

2-5
Years

More than
5 Years

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

1,465
2,040
5
48
3,558

-

-

1,465
2,040
5
48
3,558

1,465
2,040
5
48
3,558

1,465
2,040
5
3,510

-

-

-

48
48

545
545

-

-

545
545

545
545

1,033
1,033

-

-

-

-

2012
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalent
(a)
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
Financial Liabilities
Payables

(a)

The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Interest Rate Exposure

Weighted Average
Effective Interest
Rate
%

Maturity Date

Carrying
amount

Fixed
Interest
Rate

Variable
Interest
Rate

Non
Interest
Bearing

Nominal
Amount

Up to
1 Month

1-3
Months

1-2
Years

2-5
Years

More than
5 Years

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

798
1,742
104
48
2,692

-

-

798
1,742
104
48
2,692

798
1,742
104
48
2,692

798
1,742
104
2,644

-

-

-

48
48

1,498
1,498

-

-

1,498
1,498

-

1,498
1,498

-

-

-

-

2011
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalent
(a)
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
Financial Liabilities
Payables

(a)

The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
None of the Office's financial assets and liabilities at the end of reporting date are sensitive to movements in interest rates, hence movements in interest rates have
no bottom line impact on the Office's surplus or equity.
Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that
represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

Pilbara Development Commission
Annual report 2011-2012
Page 58 of 68

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 30. Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority and Senior Officers.
The number of members of the accountability authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, nonmonetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall within the following bands are:

$
0 – 1,000
1,001 – 2,000
2,001 – 3,000
3,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 20,000
20,000 – 30,000

2012
$000
2
3
3
2
-

2011
$000
6
1
1

The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority

$000
41

$000
58

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Commission in respect of
members of the Accountable Authority
Remuneration of senior officers.
The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority,
whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall
within the following bands are:
2012
2011
$
130,001 – 140,000
1
170,001 – 180,000
1
180,001 – 190,000
1
1
190,001 – 200,000
1
210,000 – 220,000
1
-

The total remuneration of senior officers

$000
600

$000
472

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Commission in respect of senior
officers other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority.
Note 31. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as
follows:
2012
2011
$000
$000
Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators
27
25
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 32. Schedule of income and expenses by service
Business & Industry
Development

Infrastructure, Service
Identification &
Coordination

Regional Promotion &
Information Service

Total

2012
$000

2011
$000

2012
$000

2011
$000

2012
$000

2011
$000

2012
$000

2011
$000

COST OF SERVICE
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Total cost of services

758
306
3
78
682
19
1,846

679
287
6
58
1,334
27
2,391

758
306
3
78
682
19
1,846

679
287
6
58
1,334
27
2,391

1,010
407
5
105
909
25
2,461

904
381
7
78
1,779
36
3,185

2,526
1,019
11
261
2,273
63
6,153

2,262
955
19
194
4,447
90
7,967

Income
Other revenue
Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES

312
312
1,534

121
121
2,270

312
312
1,534

121
121
2,270

416
416
2,045

161
161
3,024

1,040
1,040
5,113

403
403
7,564

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
State grants
Resources received free of charge
Royalties for Regions Fund
Total income from State Government

999
44
2
970
2,015

914
44
4
525
1,487

999
44
2
970
2,015

914
44
4
525
1,487

1,331
60
1
1,293
2,685

1,218
57
5
700
1,980

3,329
148
5
3,233
6,715

3,046
145
13
1,750
4,954

481

(783)

481

(783)

640

(1,044)

1,602

(2,610)

Surplus/(deficit) for the period
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Key Performance Indicators
CERTIFICATION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for
assisting users to assess the Pilbara Development Commission’s performance and fairly represent the performance of
the Pilbara Development Commission for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

Mr Andre Bush
Acting Chairman
Date: 6 September 2012

Mr Stephen Webster
Chief Executive Officer
Date: 6 September 2012

INTRODUCTION
The Government's desired outcome from the activities of the Pilbara Development Commission is the
enhancement of the Pilbara region's economic and social development. The Commission achieves this outcome
by providing facilitating communication between community and business groups, local shires and the state
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government, providing a coordination and fac ilitation function and by undertaking project activities,
including providing grant funding to applicants meeting specific criteria, which deliver beneficial
outcomes to business, community groups and to people living and working in the Pilbara region. The
Commissions focuses its activities through the following 3 services:
1.
Business and Industry Development - This service seeks to encourage business and industry development
through the identification and coordination of projects.
2.
Infrastructure and Service Identification and Coordination - involves working with the community and
business groups to identify infrastructure needs and coordinate the removal of impediments to achieve
delivery of service.
3.
Regional Promotion and Information Services - the Commission raises awareness of the advantages of both
living in and visiting the Pilbara region through the provision and promotion of accurate and accessible
information.
KEY EFFECTIVENESS INDICATOR
The Commission's effectiveness in achieving its government desired outcome is measured by undertaking an
annual client/stakeholder survey. The survey is conducted by an independent market research firm to
determine the extent to which the Commission's activities and services fulfil client needs. Clients are also
given the opportunity to comment on the ways in which the agency could further enhance the economic
and social development of the Pilbara. This year, the survey contacted 162 client names comprising
Commonwealth and State agencies, Local Governments, business and community organisations that have
had regular contact with the Commission over the last twelve months . Of these, 116 responded giving the
survey a response rate of 72% and a survey error rate of +/-4.86% at the 95% confidence level.
Three specific questions relating to the outcomes of the Commission's activities are included in the survey.
All questions were developed to establish client satisfaction with a variety of elements of the Commission’s
services and that:

The Commission makes a positive contribution towards economic development in the Pilbara, and

The Commission makes a positive social contribution in the Pilbara
Effectiveness Indicator
Client satisfaction that the Commission is effective in
meeting its service obligations in the Pilbara and
effective in meeting its service objectives

2009-10
Actual

2010-11
Actual

2011-12
Target

2011-12
Actual

80%

92%

80%

96%

Satisfaction levels with the Commission has increased markedly over the year with 99% of those surveyed
indicating that the Commission staff provides a professional and helpful service.
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KEY EFFICIENCY INDICATORS
The Commissions has key effectiveness indicators for each of its 3 services which were detailed in the
introduction section above.
SERVICE 1 - BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT
DESCRIPTION - Encourage business and industry development through the identification and coordination
of projects.
Performance Measures
Cost of Service
Projects completed or strategic objectives met
within agreed timeframes

2009-10
Actual
$000
$000
1,113

2010-11
Actual
$000

2011-12
Target
$000

2011-12
Actual
$000

2,391

1,464

1,846

73%

90%

80%

94%

SERVICE 2 - INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICE IDENTIFICATION AND COORDINATION
DESCRIPTION - Identify infrastructure needs and coordinate the removal of impediments to achieve delivery of
service.

Performance Measures
Cost of Service
Projects completed or strategic objectives met
within agreed timeframes

2009-10
Actual
$000
$000
3,895

2010-11
Actual
$000

2011-12
Target
$000

2011-12
Actual
$000

2,391

1,464

1,846

67%

87%

80%

87%

SERVICE 3 - REGIONAL PROMOTION AND INFORMATION SERVICES
DESCRIPTION - Raise awareness of the advantages of both living in and visiting the Pilbara region through the provision
and promotion of accurate and accessible information.

Performance Measures
Cost of Service
Projects completed or strategic objectives met
within agreed timeframes

2009-10
Actual
$000
$000
556

2010-11
Actual
$000

2011-12
Target
$000

2011-12
Actual
$000

3,185

1,463

1,846

72%

82%

80%

95%

Cost of Service

Overall the cost of services did not increase above expected normal inflationary pressures with the
exception of related staff costs where regional allowances increased substantially. Staff numbers
remained static at 1 FTE less than our optimum numbers; notwithstanding, the Commission was able to
fulfil it role to the satisfaction of all the Commission’s stakeholders.
Project Completion
During both the 2010-11 and the current 2011-12 financial year, the Commission processed the bulk of both
rounds 1 and round 2 of the Royalties for Region grants resulting in a significant dollar out flow for grants
payments.
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Ministerial Directives
No Ministerial directives were received during the financial year.

Other Financial Disclosures
EMPLOYMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
STAFF PROFILE
As at 30 June 2011

As at 30 June 2012

Full time permanent

11

11

Full time contract

1

1

Temporary

2

2

STAFF DEVELOPMENT
The Pilbara Development Commission is committed to the continuous development of its employees. Our strategies
aim to build a highly skilled and professional team with the ability to adapt to a changing economic and social
environment.
WORKERS COMPENSATION
No compensation claims were made during the 2011-12 financial year.

Governance Disclosures
CONTRACTS WITH SENIOR OFFICERS
As at the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of employment of service, no Senior Officers, or firms of
which Senior Officers are members, or entities in which Senior Officers have substantial interests in, had any interest
in or received any benefit from any existing or proposed contracts with the Pilbara Development Commission.

Other Legal Requirements
Compliance with Public Sector Management Act Section 1994 31(1)
1.

In the administration of the Pilbara Development Commission, I have complied with the Public Sector Standards
in Human Resource Management, the Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and our Code of Conduct.

2.

I have put in place procedures designed to ensure such compliance and conducted appropriate internal
assessments to satisfy myself that the statement made in paragraph 1 is correct.
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3.

The applications made for breach of standards review and the corresponding outcomes for the reporting period
are:
Number lodged
Number of breaches found, including details
Number still under review
Number withdrawn

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

The Commission strives to achieve a high level of compliance with the Code of Ethics and Conduct Guide. The
Commission has a ‘Code of Conduct’ staff manual incorporating the Public Sector’s ‘Code of Ethics’. A comprehensive
review of the Code of Conduct commenced in January 2012 and was completed in May 2012.

Mr Stephen Webster
Chief Executive Officer
Date: September 2012

The Electoral Act 1907 - Section 175ze
In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act (1907), the Commission’s expenditure on market research,
polling, direct mail and media advertising during 2011-12 was $26,905.
Expenditure was incurred in the following areas:
Advertising Agencies
Adcorp

$6,434

Market Research Organisations
Advantage Communication

$9,300

Media Advertising Agencies
Market Creations

$11,171

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes
Following amendment to the Disability Services Act 1993, all State Government agencies are required to develop and
implement Disability Access and Inclusion Plans (DAIPs), previously called Disability Service Plans. The aim of DAIPs are
to make a positive difference to the lives of people with disabilities, their families and carers by focussing efforts to
improve access to services, information and facilities.
The Commission’s DAIP provides an important mechanism for monitoring and evaluating the Commission’s services to
help ensure that it meets the accessibility needs of people with disabilities, their families and carers.
As part of the DAIP, an annual action plan is developed with strategies to maximise accessibility. A comprehensive
review of the Commission’s DAIP commenced in November 2011 and completed in February 2012, with the Disability
Services Commission endorsing our DAIP 2011-2016 on 20 February 2012. Specific strategies related to the six DAIP
outcomes continue to be implemented on an ongoing basis and are subject to review when necessary.
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Record Keeping Plan
In January 2009, the Commission adopted its Record Keeping Plan as required under section 19 of the State Records
Act (2000). The plan, in the form of a manual is designed to provide PDC Staff with a guide to Commission Policy,
procedures and standards for handling public records. It helps ensure that all staff know that they have a responsibility
to create and maintain public records in a manner which not only complies with legislative requirement, but allows for
quick and easy location, identification and retrieval of such documents or electronic data.
The Commission confirms the following:


A review of the Record Plan commenced in June 2012 to align the plan with the Commission’s Record
Management procedures and Retention and Disposal Schedule;



The efficiency and effectiveness of the Commission’s record keeping system is evaluated not less than once every
five years; and



The Commission conducts record keeping training for staff through its staff induction program as well as annual
refresher training.

Government Policy Requirements
Accountability and Ethical Decision
All staff in the Commission have undertaken Accountable and Ethical Decision Making training.

Occupational Safety and Health
The Commission acknowledges its responsibilities under the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 to provide and
maintain a safe and healthy environment and exercise a duty of care to ensure employees, clients and visitors to the
Commission’s workplaces, as far as practical, are not exposed to hazards. Contractors or persons providing services on
Commission’s premises are also required to conduct their activities in a manner that ensures the safety, health and
welfare of others. The Commission’s Executive remains committed to ensuring OS&H and Injury Management policies
and procedures are adhered to in accordance with the Act.
The Commission’s policy on Occupational Safety & Health confirms its commitment and outlines the objectives to
achieve this. The Commission also acknowledges its responsibilities to comply with the injury management
requirements of the Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. Individual ‘Return to work’ programs
are developed in consultation with the employee and management in accordance with the Act.
The OS&H and Risk Management policies, guidelines, forms and related documents are accessible to all employees on
the Commission’s internal Portal and are also disseminated at orientation and induction training programs.
Safety and Health representative elections are held every two years and nominations are called from employees
across all workplaces. Elected representatives receive recognised training in accordance with the legislative
requirements, with a view to empowering staff to identify and discuss issues that lead to improvements.
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The Commission’s Executive and OS&H Committee actively supports and maintains a consultative environment in
which management, employees and nominated OS&H representatives work together to continually improve OS&H
practices and resolve issues in the workplace.
The consultation process for the development and review of OS&H policies require that all such documents be
referred to the Commission’s OS&H Committee for their input and for further opportunity for consultation with
employees before being endorsed by the Commission’s Executive. The OS&H committee meet regularly and report
issues through a permanent open agenda item at the Commission’s Executive and team meetings.
An annual audit of the Commission’s safety management system and plans are conducted internally against the
elements in the Safety @ Work OH&S Compliance-Self Assessment. Results of the audit are presented to the
Commission’s Corporate Executive and used in the annual review of the OH&S policy. The recent assessment was
conducted in June 2012 with required action plans assigned completion timelines over the following twelve months.
The Commission’s record of performance against annual performance data requirements are tabled as follows:
Report of Annual Performance 2011-12
Indicator

Actual

Target

Number of fatalities

0

0

Lost time injury/diseases incident rate

0

0

Lost time injury severity rate

0

0

N/A

100%

Percentage of injured workers returning to work within 26 weeks

N/A

80%

Percentage of managers and supervisors trained in OSH and injury management

25%

80%

Percentage of injured workers returning to work within 13 weeks

Publications
The following publications are available from the Commission’s Port Hedland and Karratha offices. If required, the
Commission can provide a publication in an alternative format. All of these publications are available on the
Commission’s website at www.pdc.wa.gov.au
PRODUCED BY THE PILBARA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
Pilbara Government Agencies Directory

The directory provides a comprehensive listing of the postal address and contact details for all Federal,
State and Local Government offices located in the Pilbara.

Housing and Land Snapshot
The Commission produces a quarterly Housing and Land Snapshot (HALS) report, which illustrates time-series data of
historical housing figures for the Pilbara. The HALS report compares figures with previous quarter’s trends and
provides information on the movement of the real estate and commercial market.
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Pilbara Development Commission Strategic Plan 2010-2013
This publication was developed and published during the 2007-08 financial year. Planning for the Commission’s
subsequent Strategic Plan was facilitated during March 2012 and is progressing.
Pilbara Development Commission Annual Reports
A copy of the Commissions annual report is available on the website, with reports available since 2000/01.
Transient Workers Accommodation in the Pilbara
This is a Pilbara wide report attempting to collate a list of current accommodation used by FIFO or DIDO workers in the
Pilbara and what this may grow to in the next few years.
The report details that there are currently 50,000 beds for FIFO and DIDO workers in the Pilbara with an estimated
growth to 73,000 by 2015.

Situational Analysis of Age Care in the Pilbara
A mapping of current assets and services relating to aged care in the Pilbara, with comparisons to comparable
communities, looks at what services and infrastructure we will need if we are to achieve the vision of a ‘normalised’
population by the year 2035.
2012-15 Strategic Workforce Plan
The Commission’s ongoing Workforce Plan endeavours to capture our Human Resource strategies which will guide our
long term direction. The Plan will assist us to:
• attract
• develop
• design and
• engage our workforce today and into the longer term.
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